
 
609 West Navajo Street • West Lafayette IN  47906-1995 • (765) 775-5150 • Fax (765) 775-5159 • email: clerk@westlafayette.in.gov 

All agendas, minutes, and documents are available the City’s website, www.westlafayette.in.gov.  
 

page 1 of 4 

  City of West Lafayette, Indiana 
Board of Public Works and Safety 

MINUTES 
 

SEPTEMBER 14, 2009 
8:30 a.m. 

City Hall Lower Level Conference Room 
 
 

Members present were Sana G. Booker, Bradley W. Marley, and Mayor John R. Dennis, who 
presided.   
 
 
1.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

a. September 8, 2009, Meeting 
Ms. Booker moved to accept the minutes of the September 8, 2009, Board of Works 
meeting.  Mr. Marley seconded the motion.  The motion was adopted. 

 
2. NEW BUSINESS 

a. Bid Opening: Wabash Landing Garage Capital Repairs Project, Phase IV, 2009 – 
Redevelopment Commission 
Director of Development Poole explained that the bids to be opened are for Phase IV of the 
Wabash Landing Parking Garage, for coatings.  This will complete the Redevelopment 
Commission’s responsibility in the Parking Garage.  He asked that, after the bids are 
opened, they be taken under advisement.   
 
Mayor Dennis asked if the coatings are for all surfaces or just garage surfaces.  Mr. Poole 
answered that it is for garage surfaces and strategic areas, and called on Mr. Tom Gall [T.J. 
Gall & Associates] to provide additional response.  Mr. Gall responded that the coatings 
would be applied to dry surfaces, cracks, etc. on the upper decks, the last phase of work to 
keep water out of the decks. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes read the bids aloud: 

Bidder 
Base Bid 

Items 1-14 
Advanced Restoration Contractors, Inc. $122,868.40 
Carl E. Most & Son, Inc.   104,223,06 
 

Mr. Marley moved that the bids be taken under advisement.  Ms. Booker seconded the 
motion.  The motion was adopted. 

 
b. Contract and Related Documents:  Lease/Purchase – National City Commercial Capital – 
Clerk-Treasurer 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes presented the documents for entering into a master lease/purchase 
agreement with National City Commercial Capital Co., LLC, for financing seven vehicles, 
total amount of $254,338; and related documents that allow the City to set up an escrow 
account. National City Commercial Capital Co., LLC is the entity that works with the Indiana 
Bond Bank to provide equipment lease/purchase financing.  City Attorney Burns has 
reviewed the material and found it in order; as required by the contract, he has submitted his 

Subject to approval at the September 21, 2009, Board of Works meeting. 

gail
Text Box



BOARD OF WORKS MINUTES, SEPTEMBER 14, 2009, CONTINUED 

 
609 West Navajo Street • West Lafayette IN  47906-1995 • (765) 775-5150 • Fax (765) 775-5159 • email: clerk@westlafayette.in.gov 

All agendas, minutes, and documents are available at the City’s website, www.westlafayette.in.gov.  
 

page 2 of 4 

opinion on letterhead. Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes asked for Board approval of the document 
and designating the Mayor to sign on behalf of the City for transactions related to the 
lease/purchase agreement. 
 
Mr. Marley moved that the lease/purchase documents be approved and that the Mayor be 
authorized to sign transactions related to this.  Ms. Booker seconded the motion.   
 
Mr. Marley asked what the rate was.  Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes answered that it was the 
lowest cost lease/purchase proposal that the City received.  Mr. Marley said he derived 
3.339%.  Ms. Rhodes said the original proposal was for 3.34%.  Mr. Marley noted that there 
was a prepayment option. 
 
The motion was adopted. 
 
c. Requests for Proposal – Wabash Heritage Trail Construction – Parks  
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes brought this item to the attention of the Board.  This is another 
situation in which a response was received late, after the September 8 Board meeting; it 
was brought to the Clerk-Treasurer’s Office at 10:35 a.m. by Parks Superintendent Payne.  
It had been opened, because it was not marked as a proposal.  It is a response to the 
Request for Proposal for the Wabash Heritage Trail Construction project from Level 5 
Engineering. Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes asked the Board if they wished to have this proposal 
considered.  City Attorney Burns suggested that this response be included in those 
proposals considered, but marked as one that came in late.  The Board can waive any 
deficiencies, so long as it is in the benefit of the City. 
 
This is not an actionable item, simply noted for the record. 
 
d. Extending Summer Rates for Wastewater – WWTU 
Wastewater Utility Director Henderson requested approval for extended the summer rate for 
this year, as has been done in prior years. 
 
Mayor Dennis noted that this is a practice that has been done in the past.  He asked Mr. 
Henderson to clarify summer rates.  Wastewater Utility Director Henderson answered that it 
effectively allows people not to pay for the additional water they use on their gardens and 
lawns throughout the summer, since that water does not enter the sewer system.  Clerk-
Treasurer Rhodes added that the calculation for the summer rate is the average usage 
during December, January, and February. 
 
Ms. Booker moved that the request to extend the summer rates for Wastewater be 
approved.  Mr. Marley seconded the motion.  The motion was adopted. 
 
e. Elevation in Rank:  Probationary Officer Michael J. Noworyta to Police Officer 2nd Class – 
Police  
Police Chief Dombkowski asked that Probationary Officer Michael J. Noworyta be elevated 
to Police Officer 2nd Class, effective September 8, 2009.  Officer Noworyta has met time in 
service, time in grade, and meets the requirements of a full member of the Police 
Department.  His new biweekly rate, including shift differential, will be $1,863.58. 
 
Mr. Marley moved that the request to elevate Probationary Officer Noworyta to Police Officer 
2nd Class be approved.  Ms. Booker seconded the motion.  The motion was adopted. 



BOARD OF WORKS MINUTES, SEPTEMBER 14, 2009, CONTINUED 

 
609 West Navajo Street • West Lafayette IN  47906-1995 • (765) 775-5150 • Fax (765) 775-5159 • email: clerk@westlafayette.in.gov 

All agendas, minutes, and documents are available at the City’s website, www.westlafayette.in.gov.  
 

page 3 of 4 

 
f. Change Order No. 1:  INDOT – Sycamore Lane Traffic Calming – Engineering  
City Engineer Buck requested that the Board approve Change Order No. 1 for a line item, to 
remove a paint line on Sycamore Lane at the cost of $0.80 per foot for 1,860 feet, making 
the total Change Order No. 1 an add of $1,488.00.  The line had to be removed, so that it 
would not confuse motorists.  Since this is a 90% federal, 10% local project, the City’s 
portion is $148.80. 
 
Mr. Marley moved that Change Order No. 1 be approved.  Ms. Booker seconded the motion.  
The motion was adopted. 

 
g. Claims 

  
 
 
 

 
Mr. Marley moved that the claims be approved.  Ms. Booker seconded the motion.   
 
►Mr. Marley asked how the City is doing overall on fuel savings for 2009, versus what 
was budgeted.  Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes answered that the fuel bill for the Parks 
Department is down over a third.  Mr. Marley asked if this would be true for all 
departments.  Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes indicated that she did not have all the billings in 
this claim run, but that Street Commissioner Downey keeps a record of year-to-date fuel 
usage.  Mr. Downey said that the Police Department is steady in its fuel use and will likely 
continue at a steady rate.  Police Chief Dombkowski added that the rate for fuel is down 
significantly, so the Department will be well under budget.  The Street and Sanitation 
Department is dependent on the weather, so it can’t be reliably predicted when leaves will 
drop and snow will fall.   
 
►Mr. Marley asked about the payments to Swan Consulting totaling $1,417.50 for 
computer services.  City Engineer Buck responded that the old computer that has HVAC 
controls software and the building door lock software is being backed up with a new 
machine. 
 
►Ms. Booker asked about the $30.00 payment to INAFSM.  Wastewater Utility Director 
Henderson answered that this is the Indiana Association for Floodplain and Stormwater 
Management membership for Victor Van Allen, the Assistant Supervisor at the 
Wastewater Plant. 
 
►Ms. Booker questioned the $7,105.00 payment to T.J. Gall & Associates for Salisbury 
Street Phase II coordination.  City Engineer Buck responded that this was payment for 
contract time monitoring the construction inspection activities on the Salisbury Street 
Phase II Project. 
 
►Ms. Booker asked about the $299.32 payment to Bound Tree Medical, LLC.  Fire Chief 
Drew answered that this was swine flu masks. 
 

The motion to approve the claims was adopted. 

i. AP Docket $89,700.21
ii. AP Docket $122,622,80
iii. AP Docket $903.16
iv. PR Docket $334,634.06



BOARD OF WORKS MINUTES, SEPTEMBER 14, 2009, CONTINUED 

 
609 West Navajo Street • West Lafayette IN  47906-1995 • (765) 775-5150 • Fax (765) 775-5159 • email: clerk@westlafayette.in.gov 

All agendas, minutes, and documents are available at the City’s website, www.westlafayette.in.gov.  
 

page 4 of 4 

 
h. Informational Items 
    i. Quotes for Tapawingo Park Concrete Vault – Opening September 21, 2009 – Parks  

Parks Superintendent Payne announced that this vault would be installed to make 
access to the cooling system and controls easier.   
 
Ms. Booker asked City Attorney Burns if the phrase “save harmless” was the same as 
“hold harmless” in the indemnity statement.  City Attorney Burns responded that it was. 

  
   ii. Projects Payments Listing – WWTU  

There were no questions or comments on the listing. 
 

i. Other Items 
i. Street Commissioner Downey reported that the Street Department would place barriers 
in the Village on Thursday morning and remove them on Sunday morning.  The barriers 
will be stored in the parking area on the north side of South Street between Chauncey and 
Salisbury, in the area that was left open for construction.  Mayor Dennis said about 20 
vehicles have been using this space, which, Police Chief Dombkowski added, is not 
marked and not regulated.  City Engineer Buck noted that there is a sight distance 
obstruction at the corner of South Street and Salisbury when cars are parked there.  He 
added that using this area for barrier storage would mitigate the problem, in addition to 
having the barriers closer to their installation area.  Mayor Dennis noted that this would 
save the City some overtime pay.  The Mayor asked that the media advise the public of 
this change. 
 
ii. City Engineer Buck announced that the Street Resurfacing Project is getting started.  
They began at Elm and Maywood, and will move on to Leslie, where extensive work will 
be done.  This will necessitate some coordination with the schools, for pedestrians 
traveling between the junior high and Happy Hollow Elementary School.  The hope is to 
finish the work in three to four weeks. 
 
iii. Wastewater Utility Director Henderson reported that landscaping and sidewalks are 
being restored along the Western Interceptor Phase III work route.  Atlas Excavating has 
all the pipe and structures in the ground. 
 
iv. Police Chief Dombkowski stated that the barriers in the Village would be up Thursday 
through Sunday.  A street closure was previously approved by the Board, for closing South 
Street between Northwestern and Chauncey for the Starry Night event sponsored by 
Greyhouse Coffee.  It will be very busy in the Village during the weekend. 
 
v. Director of Development Poole announced that 4:00 p.m. Sunday is the boathouse 
groundbreaking at the old Burnham’s site.  Mayor Dennis added that Art on the Wabash is 
from 10:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. in Tapawingo Park, and the Hunger Hike will be routed 
through Tapawingo Park. 
 

 3. ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business to come before the Board, Mr. Marley moved that the meeting 
be adjourned, and Mayor Dennis adjourned the meeting. 




